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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL, (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Lithgow Library is .a one and a half story rectangular granite 
building in the Romanesque/Revival style. The grey granite has a rough 
surface with finished details. The facade is composed of three major parts 
a projecting central entrance section flanked on either side by a wall 
with a series of windows. The central entrance is approached by a flight 
of finished granite stairs. The building is entered through a large 
Romanesque arch of finished granite. Below each base of the arch is a 
semi-detached Romanesque column and two brackets. On either side of the 
arch is a pair of vertical rectangular stained glass windows. At either 
corner of the projecting central section is a semi-detached Romanesque 
column. Over the arch is the inscription, "The Lithgow Library". The 
The first story of the central section is divided from the gabled half 
story by a finished horizontal molding. Within the gable are three win­ 
dows surrounded by finished Romanesque arches and semi-detached columns. 
The gable is outlined in finished granite.

On each side of the central section is a series of five vertical rec­ 
tangular windows divided by finished semi-detached Romanesque columns. 
The upper section of each window contains a stained glass panel. Below 
the first, third, and fifth window is a finished circular panel bearing 
the name of an important literary figure. The roof is covered with red 
slate and has an eyelet window on either side of the central gable. These 
windows are similiar to those found on the Romanesque Revival buildings.

The gable ends of the Lithgow Library are as ornamental as the facade. 
On the first story there are two groups of three vertical rectangular 
windows. Both sections of each window are stained glass. The windows 
are divided by finished semi-detached Romanesque panels. Between the two 
groups of windows is a solid wall. On the west wall, this area is rough 
stone, while on the east wall, there is a large square panel containing 
many names of writers. Beneath each window grouping and the section in- 
between is a finished circular panel inscribed with a name of an author.

The half story of each end wall contains granite cut in a variety of 
decorative patterns. The half story is divided from the first story by 
a finished horizontal molding. The gable roof is outlined by finished 
granite. A projecting chimney is located in the center of the gable and 
extends above the roofline. The base of the chimney is ornamented with 
three carved granite brackets.

The chimney on the west wall is of rough granite to the roofline, 
while that on the east wall has a decorative panel with the date 1894 
near the peak of the gable. At the peak of each gable end is an ornamen­ 
tal granite chimney cap comprised of a grouping of small Romanesque columns

The rear wall is similar to the facade. The treatment of the wall on 
either side of the central section is identical. The central section 
consists of three bays of stained glass windows on either side of a chimney

(See Continuation Sheet)
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7. DESCRIPTION

Three circular author panels appear under each group of windows.

The Lithgow Library has a handsome interior. The first floor is 
divided into three major sections, a central half with a stack room at the 
left and a reading room at the right. The hall and stack room are finished 
in dark Colonial Revival woodwork, while the reading room has a lavish 
white and gold French Renaissance decor. The half story contains a large 
central meeting room with flanking storage rooms.

The Lithgow Library has not undergone any important architectural 
changes since its construction between 1894 and 1896. The beauty of its 
exterior Romanesque Revival design combined with the richness of its interior 
have made it the most important library of the Richardsonian manner in Maine
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Lithgow Library in Augusta reflects as direct an inspiration 
from the work of H.H. Rich,ardsqn,as any building in Maine. During the 
1870's and 80's, Richardson began to revolutionize American architectural 
design by the forceful unity with which he composed Medieval Romanesque 
forms as well as his utility in organizing space. Small community public 
libraries were emerging at this time, and these became one of the build­ 
ing types most frequently requested of Richardson and his contemporaries. 
Richardson solved the problem by creating one and a half story structures 
such as the Crane Memorial Library in Quincy, Massachusetts of 1880-83, 
which were divided into three major sections, an entrance flanked by a 
reading room and stacks. The Lithgow Library of 1894-96 is an adaptation 
of the Crane Memorial Library in both style and plan. The similarity in 
design is especially understandable in light of the architect, Joseph 
Ladd N0a 1, a Wiscasset, Maine native who entered the office of Richardson 
successors shortly after the master's death in 1886. Yet the Augusta 
building's departure from Richardson's purity of Romanesque detail and 
assymetry in composition are indicative of the Beaux Artes influence 
which was being felt in the decade following his death.

Like so many of its counterparts, the Lithgow Library was the out­ 
growth of a nineteenth century private library organization. In the case 
of Augusta, this was the Augusta Literary and Library Association, which 
was founded in 1872. Money for books and equipment was raised by obtainir 
life memberships at fifty dollars per person. Despite an initial sub­ 
scription of $2,500 and support from such prominent citizens of Maine as 
the James G. Blaine family, Senator James W. Bradley, and Governors Joseph 
Williams, Lot M. Morrill, and Seldon Connor, the effort faltered financially 
Fortunately, however, Lewellyn W. Lithgow bequethed $20,000 to the city 
of Augusta in 1881 to found a public Lithgow Library and Reading Room. 
Augusta also became a residuary legatee and received an additional $16,000 
for the project. The trustees of the Lithgow Library first met in Feb­ 
ruary of 1882 and decided to consult the Augusta Library and Literary Asso 
ciation about the terms of a merger. The old organization offered to 
join with the new one if its debts would be assumed. This was agreeable 
to both.

CSee Continuation Sheet)
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Hitchcock, Henry Russell, The Architecture of H.H. Richardson and His
Times, 1936

Van Rensselaer, Mariana Griswold, Henry Hobson Richardson and His Works,
1888.
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8. SIGNIFICANCE

Aside from making books immediately available to the public, the 
trustees of the Lithgow Library had the longer range goal of a permanent 
building in mind. In 1888, they purchased a site at State and Winthrop 
Streets in Augusta, and added to it in 1892. Public fund raising began 
in the summer of 1891 and had produced $22,000 by the fall of 1892. With 
a goal set at $40,000, the trustees appealed to Andrew Carnegie, the great 
steel magnate who was known for his generous gifts to libraries. Carnegie 
responded from Venice, Italy, on November 15, 1892, with a challenge that 
he would donate half of the remaining $18,000 if $9,000 could be raised 
by local subscription. Within six months, Carnegie's gift was matched, 
and the trustees proceeded with plans for a building. A nationwide com­ 
petition was held to obtain a design, and sixty-nine architects from Maine 
to Colorado sent drawings.

In the book published at the completion of the Lithgow Library, the 
following account of selecting a design appears: "On the 15th of July, 
these plans were opened for examination. Some of them were of very elegant 
conception, and too expensive for consideration. A majority of them did 
not meet the conditions required. So severe was the censorship that only 
a few received positively favorable regard, and not one was entirely accep­ 
table without minor alterations of detail."

The trustees deliberated for almost two months before voting on 
September 12, 1893, to accept with alterations the plan of Neal and Hopkins 
of Pittsburg, Pennsylvania. John L. Neal and Alfred Hopkins were well 
prepared for their architectural practice. While Neal studied and worked 
as a draftsman with H.H. Richardson's successors, Shepley, Rutan, and 
Coolidge in Boston, Hopkins spent several years as a draftsman in the office 
of James Renwick in New York. The Neal and Hopkins partnership continued 
from 1891 to 1894. Their design for Lithgow Library achieved such success 
that it was reused by Neal for Morrill Memorial Library in 1896, in Nor­ 
wood, Massachusetts.

The corner stone of the Lithgow Library was laid on June 14, 1894. 
The building was constructed during 1894 and 1895 with completion in January 
of 1896. A month later on February 3 of that year, the library was dedi­ 
cated. Thus, Augusta received a stylish public library which is now recog­ 
nized as Maine's purest expression of the late nineteenth century Romanes­ 
que Revival fostered by H. H. Richardson.
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